
T OxCANI TpIC OMPAxyLTMITEI)

Annusl Report 2 0 I 9-2 02 0



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Chairman & Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Independent Director
Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Independent Director
Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri, No n-Exec utive D irector

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Arindam RoyChowdhury

AUDITORS
M/s. Navin Nayar & Company

Chartered Accountants
Kolkata

BANKBR
State Bank of India

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGBNT
Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

CN : U74l40WB I 994PTC062636
34, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No.7A &.78,

Kolkata -700017
Telephone: 033 2280-6616117 118;Fax: 033 2280-6619

E-mail: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com, Website: www.nichetechpl.com

TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : L0 I 1 32WB i 893PLC0007 42

REGISTERED OFFICE & ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
158, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor, Kolkata-700 001

Phone: 2248 7 685, F ax: 2210 054 1.

E-mail : info@tonganitea.com, Website : www.tonganitea.com

TONGANI TEA ESTATE
P.O.Dhula, Dist.Darrang,

Pin-784 146, Assam.



TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : L01 132W81893PLC0007 42

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 127th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will
be held on Friday, the 25th September, 2020, at 10.30 A.M. IST through Video Conferencirg 1';VC";
/Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year

ended 3 1't March, 2020 together with the Report of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and
in this regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31,2020 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before
this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted."

To appoint Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN: 00123386), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment as a Director and in this regard, pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN: 00123386), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible
offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation."
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Regd.Office :

l58, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor
Kolkata - 700 001

Date: 1Oft August,2020

By Order of the Board

FOT TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
Chairman

DIN: 00123386

NOTES:
1. In view of the outbreak of the Covid-l9 pandemic and restriction imposed on movement of

peoples at several places in the country, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide its
Circular No.2012020 dated May 5,2020 read with Circular No.1412020 dated April 8,2020 and
Circular No.1712020 dated April 73,2020 (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars") and other
applicable circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) have permitted
the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") through VC / OAVM, without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("Act"), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("SEBI Listing Regulations") and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through
VC / OAVM.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Register of Members and
the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday,lgth September, 2020
to Friday, 25ft September,2020 (both days inclusive) for annual closing.
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3. Since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, the facility for appointment of
proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM and hence the Atiendan.. Stip, Route
Map and Proxy Form are not annexed to this notice.

4. The Company will conduct the AGM through VC/OAVM from its Registered Office i,e 158
Hemanta Basu Sarani 3'd Floor.Kolkata-T0ObOt.Wtrictr shall be deemed to be venue of the
meeting.

5. Corporate members intending to authorize their representative(s) to attend the Meeting are
requested to send a scanned copy of the board resolution (pdf/jpeg format) authorizing-their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. The said 

"board

Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Company by email through itr registered email
address to investorc are@tonganitea.com

6. The Company is providing facilify for voting by electronic means (e-voting) through an
electronic voting system which will include remote e-voting as prescribed by the Comfianies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2074 as presently in foice and the business set out in
the Notice will be transacted through such voting. Information and instructions including details
of user id and password relating to e-voting are provided in the Notice under Note No.20.

7. Members are requested to note that under section 124 of Clompanies Act,2t)13 read with Investor
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting. Audit. Transfer ancl Refund) Rules,20l6
(IEPF [{ules) the amount of dividend if any unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 (seven) 1,ears frorr
the due date is required to be transferred to Investor Education and protection F'uncl (lEpF)
constituted by the Central Government of India. Further, all shares in respect of which dividen<l
remain unclaimed for 7 consecutive years or more, are also required to be transferred to t6e IEpF.

'Ihe Company had accordingly transfemed final dividend pertainirrg to the Filancial year Z0l1-12 to
the IEPF lvithin the stipulated time period. The unclaimed final dividend in res;rect of financial year
2012-13 is dLre for transfer to tlre IEPF in October, 2020. Futlcher" no clainr shall lie againsithe
Companv iu respect of any amount of unpaicl dividend transfemeci to IEPF'afler completion of seven
years.

Members who have neither received nor encashed their dividend warrant(s) for the financial year
2012-13 or subsequent years, are requested to write to the Company, mentioning the relevant fotio
number or DP ID and Client ID, for issuance of duplicate/revalidated dividend warrant(s).

8. Members holding shares in physical form may intimate the Company necessary particulars for ECS
credit of the dividend directly to their bank accounts wherev.i pCS facility ii available, or, for
printing of their bank account details on the dividend warrants to prevent possibilities of fraud in
encashing the warrants.

9. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate changes in their address
alongwith proof of address/bank mandate to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA), Niche
Technologies Pvt. Ltd. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to send the
intimation for change of address /bankmandate to their respective Depository participant.

10. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in
the same order of names are requested to write to the Company's RTA, enclosing their share
cerlificates to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings into a single folio.
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11. Shareholders are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy liquidity

since trading of shares oi th. Company are under compulsory demat mode as per the regulation of

SEBI and also to prevent any loss of physical Share Certificate (if already complied with, please

ignore this).

12.The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent

Account Number (pAN) by every participant in Securities market. Members holding shares in

electronic form are, therefoie, ."qr.rt"d to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with

whom they are maintaining theii demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can

submit their pAN details to the R&T Agent or to the Registered Office of the Company.

13. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the

Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also

advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should

be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified'

14. Details under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 20i5 with the Stock Exchange in respect of the Director seeking re-appointment at the

Annual General Meeting, form an integral part of the notice. The Director has furnished the requisite

declaration for his/her re-appointment.

l5.Electronic copy of the Notice and Annual Report of the l27th Annual General Meeting of the

Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting is being sent to all the members

whose email IDs are registeied with the company/Depository Participants(s) for communication

purposes.

In terms of SEBI circular No. SEBVHO/CFD/CMD1iCLRIP12}2)I7? dated May 12, 2020

Requirement of sending physicallhard copies of full annual repoft to shareholders has been

dispensed with. The n-r.n"r6.ir who have not updated their email address are requested to do so

immediately since the requirement of sending physical copies of annual report are dispensed with'

16. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under

Section 170 of the companies Arx, zal3ind the Register of contracts and Arrangements in which

Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Act and all other documents referred to

in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode.

17. Members holding shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in respect of

shares held by them pursuant to section 72 of the cornpanies Act2013. The prescribed Form (Form

SH 13) can be obtained from the Share Deparlment of the Company. Members desiring to avail this

facility, may send their Nomination Form iin duplicate) duly filled in, to the Company or its Share

Transfer Agents M/s. Niche Technologies ivt. f-ia q ia, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No'7A

& TB,Kolkata - 700 017 by quoting their respective Folio Numbers.

1g. SEBI and Ministry of corporate Affairs encourages paperless communication as a contribution to

Green environment. Members holding shares in p[ysitai mode are requested to register their e-mail

address to the RTA for receiving all Jommunications including annual repofts, notices, circulars etc'

from the company electronically. Members who wish to register their e-mail id can download the

green initiativi foim from the company's website rvu'rv'tonganitea'com'
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19. Members may also note that the Notice of the 127th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report
for 2019-20 will also be available on the Company's website www.tonganitea.com for their
download. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company's
investor email id: investorcare@tonganitea.com.

20. PROCEDURE & INSTRUCTION FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING THE AGM THRUOGH
VC/OAVM ARE AS FOLLOWS:

A. Voting at the AGM

Remote Voting through electronic means
I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,2014, as amended by the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2075, the Company is pleased to
provide members facility to exercise their right to vote at the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through remote e-Voting
('remote e-voting'), Services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(cDSL):

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on22"d September, 2020 (9:00 am) and ends on 24'h Septemb er,2020 (5:00
pm). During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 18'r' September, 2020, may cast their vote

' electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website r,vww.evotingindia.corn during the voting

period

(iii) Click on "Shareholders" tab.

(iv) Now Enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: l6 digits beneficiary ID,
b. FoTNSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by B Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company.
(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
(vi) lf you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to rvrvrv.evotinsindia.com and voted on an

earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your l0 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

o Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two letters
of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.

o In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable
number of 0's before the number after the first two characters of the
name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with
sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field.
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Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your

records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.
demat account or in the companyDOB

company records for the said demat account or folio.
. Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the

details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the

member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as

mentioned in instruction (iv).

demat account or in theEnter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in yourDividend
Bank
Details

(viii)
(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein

they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note

that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other

company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL

platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take

utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the

resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> i.e.Tongani Tea Company Limited on

which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option

,,YES/NIO,, for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you

assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the ,,RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT"' A confirmation box

will be displayed. if you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on

"CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you,,CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on "click here to print" option on

the Voting page.

If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User lD and the image

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system'

(xiii)
(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii) Note for Institutional Shareholders :

. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to

lrttps :#wrv lv .ev gti ngiydia.cgm and register themselves as Corporates.

o A scanned copy orin. R"girtration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to

hel pdesk. evotin g(0cdslindia' com'
. After receiving tr,Elogi, o"tails a compliance user should be created using the aclmin login and password.

The Compliani. ur.. *ould be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

. The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the

accounts they would be able to cast their vote'

. A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour

of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the

same.
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(xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked

euestions (,,FAes,,) and e-voting manual available at wr,vlv.evotingindia.cot! under help section or

write an email to helpdesk.evotins@cclslindia.com or contact them at 18002005533'

(xx) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-voting available for android based

mobiles. The m-Voting app can be down'ioaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and Windows phone

users can download tne apir from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively on or after

:Oinfun.2016. please fotiow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your

mobile.

II. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM and are attending

the meeting will not be entitled to cast their vote again'

III. Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the Notice of Annual

General Meeting by Email and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e.18th September,

2020, are ,.qr.rt.d to send the written / email communication to the Company at

investorcare@ionganitea.com by mentioning their Folio No. / DP lD and Client tD to

obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-voting'

IV. Shareholder can also update his/her mobile number and email id in the user profile details

of the folio which may be used for sending future communication(s).

V. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of tlie paid up equity

share capilat of tne Company as on the cut-off date of 1 8th September,2020. A person who

is not a me-ber u, on .rt ofi date should treat this notice for information purpose only.

'VL Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries of PlotNo.11Dl3111, StreetNo. 1111, PS

qube, UnitNo. 1015A, 1Oth Floor, Kolkata- 700135 has been appointed as the Scrutinizer

to scrutinize the remote e-voting and voting process to be carried out at the Annual General

Meeting in a fair and transparent manner'

VII. The Scrutinizer will submit, not later than 2 days of conclusion of the AGM, a

consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the

Chairman of the ComPanY.

Vru. The Chairman shall declare the result forlhwith. The Results declared alongwith the

Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website www.tonganitea'com and

on the website oi COSL and communicated to Stock Exchange, immediately.

B. INSTRUCTION FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING TIIE AGM

ARE AS FOLLOWS;-
The procedrr" io. e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned

above for Remote e-voting'

Only those Members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility

and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not

barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the

AGM.

If any votes are casted by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if
the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the
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votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the

meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the meeting.

C. PROCEDURE FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC / OAVM:

Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM or view the

live webcast of AGM through the CDSL e-Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at

https://wwn,.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting
credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/ members login where the

EVSN of Company will be displayed.

Members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID
and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned in
the Notice.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / iPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to

avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

For convenience of the Members and proper conduct of AGM, Members can login and join at

least 30 (thirty) minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM and shall be kept open

throughout the proceedings of AGM.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting
System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available
at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk

evotin g@,cdslindia.com .

Members attending the AGM through VC /OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning

the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

D.PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS / SEEK CLARIFICATIONS WITH RESPECT TO
ANNUAL REPORT:
. As the AGM is being conducted through VC / OAVM, for the smooth conduct of proceedings of

the AGM, members are encouraged to send their queries 10 days before the date of the AGM i,e

Monday, 14th September, 2020 by 5.00 p.m from their registered email ID mentioning their
name, demat account number / folio number, mobile number at investorcare@tonganitea.com so

as to enable the management to keep the information ready and replied accordingly.
. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register

themselves as a speaker by sending email 10 days before the date of the AGM i,e Monday, 14th

September, 2020 from their registered email ID mentioning their name demat account number /
folio number, mobile number to investorcarc@tonganitea.com. Those members who have

registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ ask questions

during the AGM.
. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as

appropriate for smooth conduct of the AGM

a
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Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the forlhcoming Annual General Meeting [Pursuant to
Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations.20l5 and

Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings]

Director Identifi cation Number (DIN) 00123386

Name of the Director Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga

Category Non-Executive Director

Terms of Appointment Appointment as NED liable to relire by
rotation

Date of Birth 06-01-r963

Nationality Indian

Date of Appointment on the Board 31-07-1998

Qualifications B.COM

Expertise in specific functional area Accounts, Finance

Number of shares held in the Company 43,3 83

List of the directorships held in other companies* Norben Tea & Expofts Ltd.
Joonktollee Tea & Industries Ltd.,

Number of Board Meetings attended Curing the year 2019-20 8 (eight)

Chairman/ Member in the Committees of the Boards of companies in
which he is Director*

Chairrnan in:
l.Stakeholders Relationship Comrnittee
2.Review Committee
3 Share Transf'er Comrnittee

Member in :

l.Nornination & Remuneration Cornrnittee

Relationships between Directors inter-se None

Remuneration details (Including Sitting Fees & Commission) Rs.25,000/-

*Directorship includes Directorship of Public Companies & Committee membership includes only Audit Committee and

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of Public Limited Company (whether Listed or not).

Regd.Offrce:
l58, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor,
Kolkata - 700 001

Date : 10th August,2O2O

By Order of the Board
FoT TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
Chairman

DIN:00123386

8



COMPANY
CIN : L01 112)V41893PLC0007a2

REPORT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TO THE MEMBERS
Your Directors present the One Hundred Twenty Seventh Annual Report together with the Company's
Audited Accounts for the Financial Year ended 3l't March, 2020.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS
The financial performance of the Company for the year ended on 3l'tMarch,2020 is summarized
below:-
FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Rupees)

Year Ended
March 31,2020

Year Ended
March 31,2019

TotalRevenue 77479686 87400688

Pro before Finance C reciation and Taxation 2135255 7059142
Less : Finance Cost 36440s0 3548845

before and Tax (1s0879s) 35t0297
Less : iation 240140s 2456878

s before tax (3910200) l 05341 9
Less

Current Tax 167460. MAT Credit
Deferred Tax (2962411 (3828e8)
Income Tax for earlier

Profit(Loss) after tax (3613ese) 1268857
Other 9omprehensive Income
Item that will not be reclassified to or loss 1114642 1564092
Income tax relating to these items (289807) (406664)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (2789124\ 2426285
Add : Balance brought forward from previous year 911s901 9202738
Surplus available for Appropriation 6326777 11629023
APPROPRIATIONS :

Final Dividend on Equity Shares 1114650 2322188
Corporate Tax on Final Dividend 91666 r90934
Transferred to General Reserve
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 5120461 91 15901

2. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
Due to very heavy rains in July 2019 a portion of the plantation remained under heavy water logging for
a prolonged period resulting in loss of tea crop.
Further, in the beginning of season 2020 hawest of first flush teas were lost due to lock-down measllres
for Covid-19.
These two major factors impacted the profitability of the company in2019-20.
During April and May 2020 the bushes had to be pruned/skiffed again to get them back in shape after re-
opening of lock-down.
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3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS,IF ANY,
There has been no change in the nature of Business of the Company during the reported financial year

4.DIVIDEND
With a view to conserve resources, your directors do not recommend any dividend for the reported
Financial Year.

s.TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE
The Company proposes not to transfer any funds for the financial year to the General Reserve.

6.MATERIAL CHANGES COMMITTMENTS
There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the company which
has occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financiai statements
relate and the date of the report.

7. SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review the company has not altered its share capital.

8. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
Your Company has in place, an adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size,
requirements and the nature of operations. These systems are designed keeping in view the nature of
activities location and various business operation.

9. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Being a listed entity, the financial statements are passing through the Audit Committee and the
processes of Internal and External (Tax, Cost and Statutory) Audits, before being approved at the
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company. The financial statements are regulartyupaated on the
Company's website and available to all stakeholders.

10. NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR
As on 31't March, 2}z},your company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate Companies.

11. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted/renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act,
2013.

12. AUDITORS'REPORT
The report by the Auditors is self explanatory and has no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer; hence no explanation or comments by the Board were required.

13. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,2013, and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Board has appoinled CS Ajay Kumar
Agarwal, Proprietor of Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries, Practising Company Secretary as
its Secretarial Auditor to undertake Secretarial Audit for the FY 2Ol9-20. The Secretarial Audit Report
in specified form MR-3 is annexed herewith as Annexure A in the Annexure forming part of ttris
Report. The Secretarial Audit Report has no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer; hence no
explanation or comments by the Board were required.
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14. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ABSORPTION
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

oF TECHNOLOGY, FOREIGN

The information pursuantto Section l3a(3)(m) of the Companies Act,20l3 and Rule g of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given as Annexure B in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

15. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RBTURN
In terms of provisions of Section 92, 134(3), read with Rule l2 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as
Annexure C in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

16. POLICY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The level of operations of the Company is below to the minimum threshold of Corporate Social
Responsibility reporting.

17. DIRECTORS
At present your Board is duly constituted comprising of 4 (Four) Directors, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga
(DIN: 00123386), Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree (DIN:-00421623), Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka (DIN:
00823611) and Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri (DIN: 07308451). In accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act,2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga,retires
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligitle, offers himself fo.."-uppiintment.

IS.DETAILS OF DIRBCTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE
APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR
There has been no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the financial year.

Mr. Achintya Sekhar Rarhi resigned from the post of Company Secretary with effect from the close of
the business hours of 19.01 .2020.

Mr. Arindam RoyChowdhury, was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f.5th March, 2020.

19.NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors have met 8 (eighQ times on 05-04-2019, 22-05-2019, 05-0g-20 1g,24-09-2019,
08-11-2019, 1l'12-2019, 10-02-2020 and 05-03-2020 during the Financial Year endei 3l't March,
2020.The gap between any two consecutive meetings of the Board of the Company was not more than
one Hundred and Twenty Days (120 days) as stipulate d under SEBI's Listing Requirements, 2015.
There was no resolution by circulation passed by the Board during F.y.20lg-20. The details of the
number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by eachbirectors during the financial year
2019'20 is annexed herewith as Annexure D in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

20. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
{ Sgfarate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 08-l l-201g, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree
the lead Independent Director presided the meeting. The Independent Directors at said meeting revieived
the performance of the non Independent Directors.

21. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Every Independent Director has, at the frrst meeting of the Board and at the first meeting of the Board
after his/her appointment, in the financial year 2}li-2020, given a declaration as required u/s.149 (7) of
the companies Act, 2013 that he/she meets the criteria of Independence.
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22. AUDIT COMMITTEE AS REQUIRED U/S.177(8) OF COMPANIES ACT,2013
The Audit Committee of the Board comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree
(Independent Director), Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka (Independent Director) and Mrs. Sumana

Raychaudhuri (Non-Executive Director). Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Chairman of the Committee, has

expert knowledge of finance and accounting.

Further, during the year there was no recommendation of the Audit Committee which had not been

accepted by the Board.

23. YrGrL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY)
In pursuance to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act,2013, a Vigil Mechanism
for Directors and employees of the Company, to report genuine concerns has been established. The
Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) has been uploaded on the Company's website at

www.tonganitea. com/pdf/vi gil_mechanism_ton gani _20 I 4.pdf .

24.POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION ETC.
The Company's policy on Directors' appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided u/s.178(3) of
the Companies Act,20l3 is given as Annexure E in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
All the related party transaction are entered on arm's length basis and are in compliance with the

applicable provisions of the Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. There are no materially
significant related party transactions made by the Company during the year.

26. DETAILS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY
Pursuant to section 186 of Companies Act,2013 and Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, disclosure

on particulars relating to Loans, Advances, Guarantees and Investments are provided as part of the

financial statements.

27. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARI)
Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual
directors had been done during the year in the manner stated in the Criteria for Performance Evaluation

of the Directors of the Company as framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the

Company is given as Annexure F in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

28. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
a) INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT, OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS AND

OUTLOOK
Demand and Supply of tea and fluctuations in tea prices due to shortage or oversupply and

carryover stocks have got a new dimension in the near future due to the impact of COVID-I9
pandemic. Tea prices are at new levels due to shortage of production as lock down and

restrictions were imposed form March 24,2020. On reopening, tea bushes had to be prunes /
skiffed once again and production of season 20 restarted in phased manner.

Further, due to the Cyclone Amphan in mid May 20 stocks of tea at warehouses in Kolkata have

been affected and tea auction schedule was disrupted. Tea market should stabilise with the
progress ofthe season.
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b)

c)

RISK AND CONCERN
To maintain the level of operations, while ensuring strict compliance of guidelines issued and

adhering to all preventive measures, has been a new challenge. The employees of the Company

at all levels have risen to this and there has not been any loss oflife or fixed assets.

The plantation industry is largely dependent on the vagaries of nature with factors like rainfall,
its distribution, temperature, relative humidity and light intensity having its impact on yield.

Since timely information of weather plays a vital role for initiating steps towards application of
fertilizers, chemicals and pesticides, steps are taken at the estates to get the weather information
well in advance.

COVID.19 PANDEMIC
1) Impact of the CoVID-19 pandemic on the business -

The lockdown and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID l9 pandemic

have been complied with by the Company. Production and sale of tea was affected due to
lock down from 24-03-2020.Typically, about half the quantity of high value first flush
teas are produced in the last l0 days in March.

2) Ability to maintain operations including the factories/units/office spaces functioning
and closed down -
The Company partially resumed operations at its Tea estate from mid April2020 as per

permissions from local authorities ensuring strict compliance to the guidelines issued and

also adhering to all preventive measures as per various Government directives.

Schedule, if any, for restarting the operations -
The operations of the Company restarted in line with the directives of the Central & State

Govt and other regulatory authorities. The tea bushes had to be pruned/skiffed once again

and will start yielding new leaves in a while.

Steps taken to ensure smooth functioning of operations -
Strict measures ensuring social distancing, hygiene practices and sanitization to ensure

safety of workers / employees at workplace, worker housing, hospital, roads etc are being

done. The State administration has also helped in providing masks, gloves etc.

3)

4)

s) Estimation of the future impact of CoVID-19 on its operations
Health and hygiene practices have evolved owing to the Pandemic. Regular field
practices have resumed and productivity and growth of tea has reached normal levels.

There should not be much drop in value of teas produced in the first quarter of F.Y 2020,
the prices remaining remunerative due to no carryover stocks in the supply chain or with
tea buyers.

Details of impact of CoVID-19 on listed entity's:

capital and financial resources

There has not been any loss of capital and financial resources of the company. Timely
financing by Covid line of Credit has helped maintaining flow of working capital for
arranging all inputs in time.

6)

I.
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II profitability
With the progress of the tea growing season the estate of the company shall be able to
generate total revenue at normal level. Cost of fuel is lower compare to last few years and
the support by Govt. of India by Provident Fund employer Contribution reduction from
l2Yoto l0% should helped as wages constitute alarge portion of expenses.

liquidity position
The liquidity position of the company is comfortable

ability to service debt and other financing arrangements
The Company shall be able to service its debt and other financing arrangements.

assets

All Fixed assets and current assets of the Company are safe. All employees at all levels
are safe.

internal financial reporting and control
Internal financial reporting and control are in place and functioning with full
connectivity.

supply chain
Supply chain has continued as movement of teas and tea garden personnel ware among
the first to re start in a phased manner. Manures, fuel oil and all essential inputs for health
care ofbushes have been available.

ilI.

IV.

V.

VI

VII

VIII. demand for its products/services
Demand for the Company's tea is good and vibrant.

Existing contracts/agreements where non-fulfilment of the obligations by any
party will have significant impact on the listed entityrs Business-
The Company does not enter into forward/future contracts for it's produced as a policy.
The loss in production value of first flush teas in season 2020 should be recovered within
July 2020 with the present prices and production levels.

8) Other relevant material updates about the listed entity's business-
The company has been able to maintain its business relations with its esteemed

customers, Govt. authorities and work force at all levels.

SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE
The Company is a Single Business Segment Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has adequate internal control system commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations which provides reasonable assurance with regard to safeguarding
the Company's assets, promoting operational efficiency by cost control, preventing revenue
leakages and ensuring adequate financial and accounting controls and compliance with various
statutory provisions.
A qualified and independent Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests improvements for
strengthening them.

7)

d)

e)
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f)

s)

h)

FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
The details of Financial Performance and Operational Performance have been provided in the
Report of the Directors.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
The Company has built its workforce with a diverse background of individuals - essential for the
kind of organization what it is. The Company constantly endeavours to provide a platform where
people have opportunities to actualize their maximum potential through work which helps to
stretch their intellect. Continuous efforts are on for a work-culture which encourages innovation,
transparency in communication, trust and amity.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
The statements made in the Management's Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be "Forward Looking Statements" within
the meaning of applicable Securities Laws & Regulations and are based on the currently held
beliefs and assumptions of our management, which are expressed in good faith and in their
opinion, reasonable. Actual results could differ from those expressed and implied since the
Company's operations are influenced by many external and internal factors beyond the control of
the Company. Several factors could make a significant difference to the Company's operations
which includes climatic conditions, economic conditions affecting demand and supply,
government regulations and taxation, natural calamities, raw material price changes, domestic
supply and prices conditions, company's success in attracting and retaining Key Personnel,
integration and re-structuring activities, general business and economic conditions over which
the Company does not have any direct control.

29. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Board of Directors of the Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy for
the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, which in the opinion of the Board, may
threaten the existence of the Company. The Board monitors and reviews periodically various aspects of
Risk Management policy. At present no particular risk whose adverse impact may threaten the existence
of the Company is visualized.

30. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORK PLACE
Your Company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that every women employee
is treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is zero- tolerance towards sexual harassment inviting
serious disciplinary action.

The Company has established a policy against sexual harassment for its employee. The policy allows
every employee to freely report any such act and promote action thereon. The policy Iays down severe
punishment for any such act. Further, your Directors state that during the year under review, there were
no cases of sexual harassment reported to the Company pursuant to the sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 20 13.

31. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/
COURTS/TRIBUNALS
During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or
courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future.
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f)

32. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of the Section l3a(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies Act,20l3, your
Directors confirm that:

a) Applicable accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of the Annual Accounts
forthe year ended 31't March,2O2O with proper explanation relating to material departures, if
any.

b) Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates
have been made which are reasonable and prudent and have been applied so as to give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company in respect of the financial year ended 3l't March,
2020 and of the loss of the Company for that period.

c) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) Annual Accounts for the year ended 3l't March, 2020 have been prepared on the basis of going
concern concept.

e) The Directors have laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
detailing the policies and procedures to be followed and these internal financial controls are

adequate and are operating effectively.

Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

33. PARTTCULARS OF DTRECTORS' REMUNERATTON U/S.197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WrTH RULE 5(1) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

# Mr. Arindam RoyChowdhury, was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f. March,2020
* Mr. Achintya Sekhar Rarhi resigned from the post of Company Secretary with effect from the close of
the business hours of 19.01 .2020.

The Company has 299 employees as on 3l't March, 2020.

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: NIL%

Designation
oZ increase in
remuneration

Ratio of the remuneration of
each director : median

remuneration of the
employees

S.No. Name

I Manoi Kumar Daga Director NIL 0.21 : I
NIL 0.26: I2 Ashok Vardhan Bagree Director

Director NIL 0.26: IJ Ravindra Kumar Murarka
4 Sumana Raychaudhuri Director NIL 0.17 : I

NIL5 Sukh Pal Singh CEO
12.676 Alay Kumar Agarwala CFO

Arindam Roy Chowdhury # Company Secretary NIL7

8 Achintya Sekhar Rarhi * Company Secretary NIL
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Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees compared with percentile increase in
managerial remuneration is 3.41 : l.

Wages of the Tea Garden employees are decided through a Tripartite Agreement between Workers
Associations, State Government and Representatives of the Tea Industry. Remuneration paid to other
Employees are fixed. No variable remuniration is paid. Remuneratlon paia is as per the Iiemuneration
Policy of the Company.

34. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
As on March 31,2020 the Company did not have any employee in the category specified in Rule 5(2) of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

35. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING
Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in compliance with the
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,20l5. AllDirectors, employees and other designated
persons, who could have access to unpublished price sensitive information of the Company are govemed
by this code.

The trading window for dealing with equity shares of the Company is duly closed during declaration of
financial results and occurrence of any other material events as per the code. During the year under
review there has been due compliance with the code.

36. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL
MEETINGS
Duiing the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-l) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

37. SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT
The Company has committed to maintaining highest standard of safety, health environment protection
and has complied with all applicable statutory requirements and prevention of pollution. It always
strives to keep the estates greener and cleaner and committed to the safety and health of its employees.

38. LISTING OF SHARES
The Company's shares are listed with The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. and the listing fees for the year
2020-2021 have been paid.

39. APPRECIATION
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support received from the Local Gram
Panchayat, Government Departments, Banks and all others. Special thanks and appreciation are
conveyed to State Bank of India, our banker for providing Covid line of credit to tide over difficult
times.

Regd.Office :

l58, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor
Kolkata - 700 001

By Order of the Board
FoT TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
Chairmon

DIN:00123386

Date : 26th June,2020
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE A

FORM No. MR3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended On 3l't March,2020

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
Tongani Tea Company Limited
l5-8, HemantaBasu Sarani,
3rd Floor, Kolkata-70000l

We have been appointed by the Board of Directors ofTongani Tea Company Limited
(L01132W81893PLC000742)(hereinafter called the Company) to conduct Secretariil Audit of the
Company for the financial year ended 3l st March ,2020.

We have conducted the secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence togood corporate practices by Tongani Tea Company Limited (hereinafter called the
Company) having its Registered Office at 15-B, HemantaBasu Sarani, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700001, West
Bengal.Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other recordsmaintained by the Company and also information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in
our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on jlst March,
2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

l. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms, and returns filed and other
records maintained by Tongani Tea Company Limited ("the company') for the financial year ended on
3l st March ,2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act,2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 andthe Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent offoreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;-
(Not applicable tothe Company during the Audit Period)
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(v)The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act')

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations ,2011
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations, 2015;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an lssue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations,l993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)

Regulations,20l5;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996;

(f) The following Acts, over and above other laws are specifically applicable to the Company as per

the Management Representation Letter issued by the Company of even date:

(i) The Tea Act,l953 and rules thereunder
(ii) The Food Safety and Standards Act,2006 and Food Safety and Standards Rules 2011
(iii) The Tea Waste Control(Order) 1959
(iv)The Tea Marketing Control Order,2003
(v) The Assam Plantation Labour Act, 1951

2. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') which are not applicable to the Company during the financial
year under report:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations,2009;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations.

2008;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,2009.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998

3.We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards with respect to the board and general meetings issued by The Institute

of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with The Calcutta Stock Exchange

Limited.

4. During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above. Subject to the following observation

(i) the Company has appointed Company Secretary w.e.f05/03/2020as required under Section 203(l) (ii)
of the Companies Act,20l3.

(i)

tq



(ii) Mr Ashok Vardhan Bagree, (DN: 00421623) Independent Director of the Company, whose DIN
status was showing with MCA record as disqualified under U/s 164(2) of the Companies Act, 20l3for
the period from 0l/l ll20l7 to 3111012022 is cunently showing as "APPROVED" in MCA record.

(iii)Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree and Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Independent Directors of the
Company has been re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for the second term of five
consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion of l26th Annual General Meetingtill the Annual
General Meeting for the Financial Year ended 3lst March,ZOZ4.

5. We further report that:

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. No changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors took place during the audit period under review.

(ii)Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

(iii)All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

6. We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the
company has complied with the Iaws applicable specifically to the company.

7. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, to the best of our understanding, that during the audit period there are no specific
events/ actions which have a major bearing on the Company's affairs.

Place: Kolkata For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
Company SecretariesDate: 24thJuner2020

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P No.:13493
M.No. : F7604

UDIN: F007604B00037 5026

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an
integral part of this report.
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.ANNEXURE A'

To,
The Members,
Tongani Tea Company Limited
I 5-B, HemantaBasu Sarani,
3'd Floor, Kolkata-70000 1

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter'

l. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on

test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes

and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts

of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,

rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards

is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on

test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: Z[thJune,2020

For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
ComPanY Secretaries

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P No.:13493
M.No.:F7604
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A. Conservation of energy
i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; NIL

ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy; NIL

iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments' NIL

B. Technology absorption
i) The efforts made towards technology absorption; NIL

ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution;

NIL

iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years

reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) -
NIL

a) The details of technology imported;
b) The year of import;
c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed;

d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof; and

iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development. NIL

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo
The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year NIL
The Foreign Exchange Outgo during the year in terms of actual outflorvs NIL

ANNEXURE "8"

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS UNDER THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES 2014
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ANNEXURE C

MGT -9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 3l't March2020

[pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule l2(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 20141

L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
(i) CIN L0 I I 32WB I 893PLC0007 42

(ii) Registration Date 04-02-1893
(iii) Name of the Company TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
(iv) Category/Sub-Category of the

Company

PUBLIC COMPANY

(v) Address ofthe Registered office and

contact details
I58 HEMANTA BASU SARANI, Floor
KOLKATA. 7OO OOI TEL. NO.033 2248-7685

(vi) Whether listed Company YES

(vii) Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any.

NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
3A, AUCKLAND PLACE, 7TH FLOOR, ROOM NO.7A & 78,
KOLKATA - 700 017, TEL.NO.033 2280-6619
E-mail

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities conhibuting l07o or more of the total tumover of the Company shall be stated:-

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING,SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES .

ry. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equify)

(D Category-wise share Holding

S.No Name and Description of main
products/services

NIC Code of the
Product/service

oh to total turnover ofthe
Company

I Tea I 104

S,NO Name and
Address of
the Company

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/Associate o/o of
shares

held

Applicable
Section

NIL

Category of Shareholders No.ofShares held at the beginning ofthe year No.ofShares held at the end ofthe year % Change
during the

year

Demat Physical Total %o of
Total
Shares

Demat Physical Total Yo of
Total
Shares

A. Promoters
I Indian
(e) Individual/ HUF 1 38550 0 I 38550 74.579 I 38550 0 1 38550 74.5'79 0

(h) Central Govemment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(i) State Government(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(i) Bodies Corporate 6s0 0 650 0.350 650 0 650 0.350 0

(k) Banks/Financial
Institutions

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0) Anv Other (specifu)

Sub-Total(AXl) 139200 0 139200 74.929 r39200 0 139200 74.929 0

) Foreien
(a) NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(c) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(d) BankslFinancial 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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lnstitutions
(e) Any Other (specifo) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total(A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total
Shareholding of
Promoter ond
Promoter Group
(A){AXl)+(AX2)

139200 0 139200 74.929 139200 0 139200 74.929 0

B. Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions
(a) Mutual funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(b) Banks/ FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(c) Central Golt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(fl Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(e) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(h) Foreign Venture

Capital Funds
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(i)
Sub-Total (BXl) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(2') Non- Institutions
(a) Bodies Com

(i) Indian 20400 0 20400 10.981 20400 0 20400 10,981 0
( ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(b) Individuals
(D Individual

shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto
Rs.l lakh

16987 831 3 2s300 13.619 17781 75t3 25300 13.619 0

(iD Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in excess
ofRs.l lakh

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(c) Others (specifr)

Trust 0 375 375 0.202 0 375 375 0.202 0

IEPF s00 0 500 0.269 s00 0 500 0.269 0

Sub-Total (BX2) 37887 8688 46575 25.071 38687 7888 46575 25.071 0

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(BXl)+(BX2)

37887 8688 46575 25.071 38687 7888 46515 25.071 0

TOTAL (A)+(B) 177087 8688 185775 100.000 177887 7888 185775 100.000 0

C. Shares held by
Custodians for
GDRs & ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

GRAND TOTAL
(A)+(B)+(C)

177087 8688 185775 100.000 177887 7888 185775 100.000 0.000

of Promoters
Shareholding at the beginning ofthe year Shareholding at the end ofthe yearsl.

No.
Shareholders Name

% Change in
shareholding
during the year

No of
Shares

% oftotal
Shares of
the
company

o/o of Shares
pledged/
encumbered to
total shares

No of
Shares

% oftotal
Shares ofthe
company

% ofShares
pledged/
encumbered to
total shares

0.000I Manoi Kumar Daga 43383 23.352 0 43383 23.352 0

0.0002 Shanti Devi Daga 42732 23.002 0 42732 23.002 0

3 Jyoti Devi Dasa 42355 22.799 0 42355 22.799 0 0.000
4 Apama Daga 4500 2.422 0 4s00 0 0.000

0.0005 Pallavi Daga 4500 2.422 0 4500 2.422 0

0 0006 Manoi Kumar Daea (HUF) I 080 0.581 0 I 080 0.581 0

0 0.000'7 Anium lnvestments Pvt.Ltd 650 0 3s0 0 650 0 3s0

74.929 l 39200 74.929 0.000Total t39200
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(iii) Change in Promoters'Shareholding (Please specify, ifthere is no change)

S.No Particulars Date Shareholding at the
beginning ofthe year

Cumulative
Shareholding during the

year

No.of
Shares

o/o of total
Shares ofthe
Company

No.of
Shares

Yo of total
Shares of
the
Company

I Manoi Kumar Daga
At the beeinningofthe year 0l-04-2019 43383 23.352
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifuing the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus /sweat equiW etc.) :

No changes during the year

At the End ofthe year 43383 23.352

2 Shanti Devi Daga

At the beeinnins of the year 0l-04-2019 42732 23.002
Date wise Increase / Decrease in share holding
During the year specifying the reasons for
Increase / decrease (e.g.allotment / transfer/
Bonus /sweat equity etc.) :

No changes during the year

At the End ofthe year 42732 23.002

3 Jyoti Devi Daga

At the beginning ofthe year 0l -04-2019 42355 22.799

Date wise Increase / Decrease in share holding
During the year specifying the reasons for
Increase / decrease (e.g.allotment / transfer/
Bonus /sweat equity etc.) :

No changes during the year

At the end ofthe year 42355 22.799

4 Aparna Daga

At the beginning ofthe year 0t-04-2019 4500 2.422

Date wise Increase / Decrease in share holding
During the year specifiing the reasons for
Increase / decrease (e.g.allotment / transfer/
Bonus /sweat equity etc.) :

No changes during the year

At the end ofthe year 4500 2.422

5 Pallavi Daga

At the beginning ofthe year 0l -04-2019 4500 2.422

Date wise Increase / Decrease in share holding
During the year specifying the reasons for
Increase / decrease (e.g.allotment / transfer/
Bonus /sweat equity etc.) :

No changes during the year

At the end ofthe year 4500 2.422

6 Manoi Kumar Daga (HUF)

At the beginning ofthe year 0r-04-2019 I 080 0.581

Date wise Increase / Decrease in share holding
During the year specifying the reasons for
Increase / decrease (e.g.allotment / transfer/
Bonus /sweat equiW etc.) :

No changes during the year

At the end ofthe year r080 0.581

7 Anium Investments Pvt. Ltd.

At the beginning of the year 0t-04-2019 650 0.265
Date wise Increase / Decrease in share holding
During the year specifying the reasons for
Increase / decrease (e.g.allotment I transferl
Bonus /sweat equiry etc.) :

No changes during the year

At the end ofthe year 650 0.265
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(iv) Shareholding Pattem of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
ADRs):

S.No For Each of the Top I 0 Shareholders Date Shareholding at the beginning of
the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No.of
Shares

7o oftotal Shares
of the Company

No.of
Shares

%o of total
Shares of
the

I Visioncraft Industries India Pvt Ltd
At the beginning of the year 20400 10.981
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year speciffing the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/ transfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.)

No changes during the year

At the End ofthe year (or on the date ol
separation, ifseparated during the year) 20400 10.981

2 Asha Agarwal
At the beginning ofthe year 7325 3.943
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifring the
reasons for increase /decrease(e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.)

No changes during the year

At the End ofthe year (or on the date of
separation, ifseparated during the year)

7325 3.943

J Pushpa Bihani

Al the beginning of the year 6146 3.308
Date wise Increase/Decrease during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.g.allotmenVtransfer/bonus/sweat equity
etc.) :

No changes during the year

At the End ofthe year (or on the date of
separation, ifseparated during the year) 6146 3.308

4 Vikash Kejriwal
At the beginning ofthe year 1400 0.754

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year speciffing the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotmenV hansfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.)
At the End ofthe year (or on the date of
separation, ifseparated during the year) 1400 0.754

5 Sharda Devi Lakhotia
At the beginning of the year

I t83 0.637
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifing the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/ transfer/bonus /sweat equity etc. )

No changes during the year

At the End ofthe year (or on the date of
separation, ifseparated during the year) I 183 0.637

6 Sheela Basu
At the beginning of the year

550 0.296
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifing the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/ hansfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.)

No changes during the year

At the End of the year (or on the date of
separation, ifseparated during the year) 5s0 0.296

7 Basu
At the beginning of the year 544 0.293
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year speci&ing the

No changes during the year
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reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/ transfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.)
At the End of the year (or on the date of
separation, ifseparated during the year) 544 0.293

8 Sujit Sengupta
At the beginning ofthe year 400 0.215
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year speciIing the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
al lotment/ transfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.)

No changes during the year

At the End ofthe year (or on the date of
separation, if separated during the year) 400 0.215

9 Sushila Devi Bohara
At the beginning ofthe year

300 0.r6r
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year speciffing the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.):

No changes during the year

At the End ofthe year (or on the date of
separation, ifseparated during the year) 300 0.161

t0 Aditya Pugalia
At the beginning of the year

300 0. l6l
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year speci$ing the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotmenV hansfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.):

No changes during the year

At the End ofthe year (or on the date of
ifseparated during the year) 300 0.161

of Directors and Personnel
sl.
No.

Date Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative
Shareholding during the
year

For Each of the Directors and KMP No.of
Shares

%o of total
Shares of
the
Company

No.of
Shares

%o of total
Shares of
the
Company

I Manoj Kumar Daga, Director

At the beginning ofthe year 43383 23.3s2

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share holding during the
year speciling the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.g.allotmenVtransfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

At the End ofthe year 43383 23.352
2 Vardhan Bagree, Director

At the beginning ofthe year 200 0.r08
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share holding during the
year specifing the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.g.allotment/transfer,/bonus/sweat equity etc.):
At the End ofthe year 200 0.1 08

3 Ajay Kumar Agarwal4 CFO

At the ofthe year 25 0.013
Increase/Decrease in Share holding during the

year speciffing the reasons for increase/decrease

Date wise

At the End of the 25 0.013
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v. TNDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness ofthe Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

VI. REMUNERA TION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERJAL PERSONNEL

A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time directors and/or Manager:

B. Remuneration to other Directors:

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year

(i) Principal Amount 43242195 0 0 43242195

(ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

(iii) Interest accrued but not due 9986 0 0 9986

Total (i+ii+iii) 43252181 0 0 43252181

Change in Indebtedness during the financiat
year

* Addition 719t933 7 191933

* Reduction 5445753 54457s3

Net Change -5445753 7191933 1746180

Indebtedness at the end of the financial vear

(i) Principal Amount 37806428 7000000 44806428

(ii ) Interest due but not paid
(iii) Interest accrued but not due 191933 19t933
Total (i+ii+iiD 37806428 7 191933 44998361

sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of
MD/WTD/Manager

Total Amount

NOTAPPLICABLE

sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

3 Independent Directors Ashok Vardhan
Bagree

Ravindra Kumar
Murarka

Fee for attending Board/ Committee
meetings

3 1000 3 1000 62000

Commission 0 0 0

Others (please speciff) 0 0 0

Total (1) 3r000 31000 62000
4. Other Non-Executive Directors Manoj Kumar

Daga
Sumana
Ravchaudhuri

Fee for attending Board/ Committee
meetings

25000 2 1000 46000

Commission 0 0 0
Others (please specify) 0 0 0

Total (2) 25000 21000 46000

Total (B)= (l+2) 56000 52000 r 08000

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount

Sukhpal Singh,
CEO

Ajay Kumar
Agarwal4 CFO

Arindam
Roy

Chowdhury,
CS#

Achintya
Sekhar Rarhi,
CS*

L Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section l7(l) of
the Income-tax Act, 196l

1305000 53 1075 10452 96129 19426s6

(b) Value of perquisites
u/s. l7(2) Income-tax Act,
l96l

0 0 0 0

(c ) Profits in lieu ofsalary
under section l7(3) Income-
tax Act, 196l

0 0 0 0 0

2. Stock Option 0 0 0 0 0

3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0 0

4. Commission 0 0 0 0 0

as 7o ofprofit
others, speci&

5. Others, please speci& 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1305000 53 I 075 10452 96129 1942656

C. Remuneration to Personnel other than

# Mr. Arindam RoyChowdhury, was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f.5th March,2020.
* Mr. Achintya Se-khar Rarhi resigned from the post of Company Secretary with effect from the close of the business hours

of 19.01.2020.

VII. PENALTTES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDINGOFOFFENCES

Regd.Office:
158, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor,
Kolkata - 700 001

By Order of the Board
FOT TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
Choirman

DIN:00123386

Type Section ofthe
Companies

Act

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty/Punishment
Compounding fees

imposed

authority

IRDNCLT/COURTI

Appeal
made, if any

(give
details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAIT'LT

Penalty

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compounding

Date: 26th !une,2O20

Lq
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ANNEXURE *D"

NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND COMMITTEE
The details of the number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each Directors during
the financial year 2019-20 as follows:

A

Nom mittee

Stakeh mittee

ANNEXURE "E'

REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction
The Remuneration Policy of Tongani Tea Company Ltd. (the "Compdfry"), is designed to attract,
motivate and retain exceptional employees in a competitive market. The policy reflects the
Company's objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained long-term value
creation for shareholders.
Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

S.No. Date of Meeting Attended by
I 0s-04-2019 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs.Sumana

2 22-05-2019 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs.Sumana

J 05-08-2019 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs.Sumana

4 24-09-2019 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs.Sumana

5 08-l l-2019 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs.Sumana

6 1t-12-2019 r. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs.SumanaM

7 l0-02-2020 Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs.sumanaMr. Manoj

8 0s-03-2020 Mr. Manoj Kumar
Raychaudhuri

Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs.Sumana

S.No. Date of Meetine Attended by
I 03-04-2019 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Mr. Ravindra Kumar Mrs. Sumana
2 22-05-2019 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Mr. Ravindra Kumar Mrs. Sumana
3 05-08-2019 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri
4 08-t I -2019 Mr. Ashok vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri
5 t0-02-2020 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar MurqIka, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri

S.No. Date of Meeting Attended
I 22-05-2019 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mf. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka
2 0s-03-2020 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Eggee, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka

S.No. Date of Meetine Attended by
I 22-05-2019 Mr. Manoj KumalDaga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka
2 05-08-2019 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Mr. Ravindra Kumar MurarkaMr Kumar
3 08-l l-2019 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka
4 t0-02-2020 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, IVIr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka

ZO

Raychaudhuri

Raychaudhuri

Raychaudhuri
Raychaudhuri



APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
Appointment of Director(s) will be done as per the applicable provisions and schedules of the
Companies Act,2013.

BOARD REMUNERATION
Efforts are made to ensure that the remuneration of the Board of Directors matches the level with
comparable companies, whilst also taking into consideration board members' required
competencies, effort and the scope of the board function, including the number of meetings.
Fixed remuneration
Whole Time Director(s) of the Board of Directors will receive a fixed salary, alongwith basic
perquisites which is approved by the shareholders of the Company at a General Meeting.
Sitting Fees

The Board shall fix the sitting fees for the Directors and Members of the various Committees,
taking into account the extent of responsibilities and time commitment, the results of the
Company keeping in view fees paid by other peer companies, which are similar in size and
complexity.
InSelltive programme, bonus pay, etc.
Presently, the Company does not have any incentive programme.
Reimbursement of expenses
Expenses in connection with board and committee meetings are reimbursed as per account
rendered.
Pension scheme
The Board of Directors is not covered by any pension scheme or a defined benefit pension
scheme.

REMUNERATION TO OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee submits proposals concerning the remuneration of
the other Key Managerial Personnel ensures that the remuneration is in line with the conditions
in comparable companies.
Other Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting
of the following components:
" Fixed salary
" Bonus
" Benefits, e.g. use of company car, telephone, broadband, etc.
Fixed salary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure.
Personal benefits
Other Key Managerial Personnel will have access to a number of work-related benefits,
including company car, free telephony, broadband at home, and work-related newspapers and
magazines. The extent of individual benefits are not necessarily same for each individual
member of the Executive Management.
Other Key Managerial Personnel may be covered by insurance policies:
" Accident insurance
" Health insurance
" Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

3l



Notice of termination
The employment relationship is terminable by giving a months' notice. A member of theExecutive Management can terminate the employ,ient llutlonship with the company by giving
a months' notice.

Redundancv nav
As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.
Retirement Benefits
other Key Managerial Personnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan ora defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension ,.h.*. under provident fund is provided.
Gratuity is covered as per the Act.
Disclosure
The total remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel is stated in the Annual Report.

The Nomination & Remuneratio, co*,,Grb*its proposals concerning the remuneration ofother employees and ensures that the remuneration is in line with the conJitions in comparable
companies.
other Employees entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of the following
components:
" Fixed salary
" Bonus
Fixed salary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically' reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure.
Other benefits
Housing/Housing Repair Al lowance.
Noti of term ination
As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.
Redundancv nav
As per the prevailing laws of the State Govemment.
Retirement Benefits
otfel Key Managerial Personnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or
a defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension ,.t.rrl under provident fund is provided.
Gratuity is covered as per the Act.

CAG A
OF

attri ndi
The Company will follow the guidelines as mentioned in Schedule IV of the Companies Act,2013 and under Regulation l9(4) of the Listing Regulation with the Stock Exchange(s)

positive attributes and independence ofdetermining qualifi cations,

ZL

director.
ln



COMPANY

AI\NEXURE 65F"

v
The Board will assess its performance each year. The Nomination and Remuneration Commiffee isresponsible to create a process by which this will tccur and will report urnruiry-to the Board on the results ofthe.assessment process. The purpose of the assessment is to increase the effectiveness of the Board. Thevarious committees of the Board shall annually conduct a self-assessment of their performance andrespective Terms of Reference.
Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and IndividualDirectors shall also be done as outlined below:
The Company will-follow a seven step system of the following processes for evaluation:
METHODOLOGY
What the Company hopes to achieve?
clearly identified objectives will enable- the company to set specific goals for the evaluation and makedecisions about the scope of the review. Such issuei u, th. complexity of the performance problem, the sizeof the board, the stage of organisational life cycle and significint devetopments in the firm,s competitiveenvironment will determine the issues the comiany wisheJto evaluate.
Who will be evaluated?
with the objectives for the evaluation set, the company needs to decide whose performance will be reviewedto meet them.
The Company needs.to consider three groups: the Board as whole (including board committees), individualdirectors (including the roles ofchairpeison and/or lead independenidirectori and key governance personnel(generally the CFO and company secretary)
What will be evaluated?
Having established the objectives of the evaluation and the people/groups that will be evaluated to achievethose objectives, the next stage involves the evaluation be"oming slecinc. It is now necessary to elaboratethese objectives into a number of specific topics to ensure that-the evaluation fty ctarifies any potentialproblems, (2) identifies the root cause(s) of these problems, and (3) tests thl practicality of specificgovernance solutions, wherever possible. This is ,"."riu.y whether the 6oard is seeking general or specificperformance improvements and will suit boards seeking to improve areas as diverse as board processes,

d_irector skills, competencies and motivation, or even boafrroom ielationships.
Who will be asked?
Internally, Board members, the cEo, senior managers and, in some cases, other management personnel andemployees may have the necessary information to provide ieedback on elements of a company,s governance
system.
Externally, owners/members and even financial markets can provide valuable data for the review. Similarly,in some situations, government departments, major customeis and suppliers may have close links with theboard and be in a position to providi useful inforiation on its performance.
What techniques will be used?
Depending on the degree of formality, the objectives of the evaluation, and the resources available, boardsmay choose between a range of qualitative and quantitative techniques.
Who will do the evaluation?
The next consideration in establishing evaluation framework is to decide who the most appropriate person isto conduct the evaluation. If the review is an internal one, the chairperson commonly conducts theevaluation' However, there are times when it may be more appropriate to d'elegate either to a non-executiveor lead director, or to a board committee. In the case of external evaluations, Jp..iulirt consultants or othergeneral advisers with expertise in the areas of corporate governance and performance evaluation may leadthe process.

What do you do with the results?
Since the Board as a whole is responsible for its performance, the results of the review will be released to theboard in all but the most unusual of circumstances. Where the evaluation objectives are focused entirely onthe board, board members will simpry discuss the results among themselves.
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CK NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: L0 1 13 2WB 1B93PL COOOT 42

L. Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements :

[a) opinion:
ilu f,rr. iudited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of TONGANI TEA COMPANY

LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31-,2020, the Statement

of profit & Loss and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year

ended on that date, and notes to Standalone Financial Statements including a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "Standalone

financial statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020 and its loss

and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

(b) Basis for Opinion :

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on

Auditing specified under section 1a3(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those standards

are further described in the Auditor's Responsibitities for the Audit of the Stondalone Finoncial

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code

of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of the Chartered Accountants of lndia (lCAl) together with the

independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

(c) Key Audit Matters :

(ey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed

in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. As per our audit and

verification of books and records and fact finding etc. we have determined that there are no separate

key audit matters applied to this company which are communicated to the audit's report. Our audit

report in unmodified and self-explanatory.

Z. Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report

Thereon:
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the

other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report

Board's Report, corporate Governance Report, Management Discussion and

include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon

"Shantiniketan Buitding" 8, CamacStreet,9th Ftoor, Room No. : 15, Kotkata-700017
Emai [ : navinavar. nnco(dvahoo. com
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Our opinion on standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in ooing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf bases on the work we have performed, we conclude

that there is a material misstatement of this other tnformation, we are required to report that'We

have nothing to report in this regard

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements :

The CJmpany's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the

Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia. This responsibility

also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the

Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the

Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

. company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Company orto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeingthe Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements :

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and 'c
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of this standalone financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

o ldentify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk,

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion'

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the

Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has

adequ ate internal financial control systems in place and the operating effectiveness of such

4.
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a Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and th€oruIluH#ibql8*HBFTNo
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exist
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exist, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusion are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

a Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it's probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitat:,.,e
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii)to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationship and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We described this matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in

extremely rare circumstances, we determined that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

5. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
5.1 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of accoun!

(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply w
Standards specified under Section l-33 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Co

a

Rules, 2014;

36

t i.|:),k.',

ng



CONTINUATION SHEET NO

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 31-,2020,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2020 from being appointed as a directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the AcU

(fi With respect to the adequacy of the internal financiai controls over financiai reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"ANNEXURE - A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the AcU

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
Ll" of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us :

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which impact its financial position in
its Standalone financial statements;

(ii) The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There was no delay in transferring amounts which were required to be transferred, to the
lnvestor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

5.2 As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order"), as amended, issued hy
the Central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11)of section L43 ol the Act, we give in
the "ANNEXURE- 8", a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Order.

B, Camac Street
Kolkata - 7OO OL7
The 26th day of |UNE,2O2O

FoT NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY
Firm Reg istration N o. 3 1 7 1 1 7 E

Chartered Accountants

!'.Ol;(f,ii'
'':
:.J NAVIN NAYAR

Membership No:053267UDIN: 20053267 AAAAAK3B29
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WehaveauditedtheinternalfinancialcontrolsoverfinancialreportingofTONGANlTEACoMPANY
!.lNllTED (,,the Company,,}, as of March 3L,2020, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone

financial statements of ihe company for the year ended on that date'

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the company it ,"tp*tiore for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controlsbasedontheinternaicontroloverfinancialreportingcriteriaestablishedbytheCompany
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of lnternal

Financial controls over financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia'

These responsibilities includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating ertectiveiy for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its

business, including adherence to respective company's policies' the safeguarding of its assets' the

prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records'

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the companies Act' 2013'

Auditor's Responsibility r -,- -..^- ri-^^^i-r
our responsibirity is to express an opinion on the internar financiar contrors over financial reporting of the

company based on our audit. we conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of

lnternal Financial controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of

chartered Accountants of lndia and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the

companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls' Those standards

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

our audit invorves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness' our audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting inctuoea obtaining an understanding of internal financial

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists' and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effeciiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk' The

proceduresselecteddependontheauditor,sjudgment,includingtheassessmentoftherisksofmaterial
misstatementofthefinancialstatements,whetherduetofraudorerror.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system overfinancial reporting of the Company'

MeaningoflnternalFinancialControlsoverFinancialReporting
A company,s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 5r

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles' A company's internal

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositionsoftheassetsofthecompany;(2)providereasonableassurancethattransactionsare
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only

in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition' use' or

dispositionofthecompany'sassetsthatcouldhaveamaterialeffectonthefinancialstatements

CONTINUATION SHEET NO
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Limitations of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent iimitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls' material misstatements due io

error o!. fraud rnay occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial

contrors over financiar reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

oven financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions' or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures rnay deteriorate'

Opinion
ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us' the Company

has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and

such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31-,2020'

based on the internal control overfinancial reporting criteria established bythe Company consideringthe

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financiai

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia'

FoT NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY

Firm Registration N o. 3 1 7 1 1 7 E

Chartered Accountants

CONTINUATION SHEET NO

NAVIN NAYAR
MembershiP No: 053267

B, Camac Street
Kolkata -700 017
The 26th daY of fUNE,2O2O
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ln nespect of the Company's - Property, plant and equipment i'e' Fixed Assets:

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing fuil particulars, including quantitative details

and situation of Fixed Assets'

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner' designed to

cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to

the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed

assets has physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies

between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed'

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us the records examined by us and based on

examination of the conveyance deeds/registered sale deeds provided to us, we report that the title

deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold' are held in

the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date'

2. ln resPect of its lnventories:
(a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals'

(b).Thediscrepanciesnoticedonphysicalverificationoftheinventoryascomparedtobooksrecords
which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not material'

3. The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to the companies' firms or other Limited

Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Act'

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the order are not applicable to the Company and

hence not commented uPon.

4. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied

with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans' investments'

guarantees and securitY.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and hence the directives issued bythe Reserve

Bank of lndia and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the

companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from public are not

applicable.

6. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to Companies (Cost

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 read with companies (cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules' 2014

prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the

opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We have, however not

made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or

complete.
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l (a) The company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory

dues including Provident fund, Employees state insurance' lncome Tax' Goods and service Tax and

other statutory dues applicable to it'

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us' no undisputed amounts payable in respect

of Provident fund, Employees state lnsurance, tncome Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other statutory

dues were outstanding at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date on when

they become PaYable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the documents and

records the disputed statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities

are as under

Serial

No

Name of

Statute

Nature of Dues Financial Year to

which the

matter Pertains

Amount in

GeI

Forum

where

dispute is

pending

1. Department of

lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2012-13 1-,09,250/- c.l.T.

(Appeals)

2

2 Department of

lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2013-1.4 23,48,130/- c.l.T.

(Appeals)- 2

3 Department of

lncome Tax

lncome Tax 201,4-15 57,820/- c.r.T.

(Appeals)

2

12. ln our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company

Order are not applicable to the Company'

Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the

13. ln our opinion, alltransactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 17-7 and 188 of the

companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the

applicable accounting sta ndards'

8. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us' the Company has not

defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks' The company has not taken Ioan either from financial

institutions or from the government and has not issued any debentures'

g.Basedupontheauditproceduresperformedandtheinformationandexplanationsgivenbythe
management,theCompanyhasnotraisedmoneybywayofinitialpublicofferorfurtherpublicoffer
including debt instruments and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the order are

not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon'

l0.Basedupontheauditproceduresperformedandtheinformationandexplanationgivenbythe
management, we report that no fraud by the company or on the company by its officer or Employees

has been noticed or reported during the year'

ll.Basedupontheauditproceduresperformedandtheinformationandexplanationgivenbythe
management,themanagerialremunerationhasbeenpaidorprovidedinaccordancewiththerequisite
approvals mandated oy itre provisions of section Lg'7 read with Schedule V to the companies Act'

1t
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l-4. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause

3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

15. According to the information and explanation provided by the management, the company has not

entered in any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them as referred in

section 192 of the Act.

l-6. ln our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve bank of

lndia Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company and hence not commented upon.

B, Camac Street
Kolkata -70OOL7
The 26th day of |UNE,2O2O

FoT NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY
Firm Registration N o. 3 1 7 1 17 E

C h ar te r e d Ac c o u nto.nts

|rl rAil'i

NAVIN NAYAR
Membership No: 053267
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TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN No. L0 1132WBLA93PLCOOO7 42

BALANCE SHEET as at 3lst March,2020

Note No. As at 31st March,2020 As at 31st March,2Ol9

assfls
llON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

Loans & Advances

Other Financial Assets

Other Non-Current Assets

Non-Current Tax Asset (Net)

CURRENT ASSETS

I nventories

Biological Assets other than bearer plants

Financial Assets

lnvestments

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bank balances other than Note 14

Loans & Advances

Other Financial Assets

Other Current Assets

Total Assets

EOIIITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity Share Capital

lnter Company Balances

Other Equity

LIABILITIES

NON.CURRENT LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

Provisions

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Other Liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

Provisions

Other Liabilities

Current Tax Liabilities ( Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities

5

76,990
68,00,000

2L9,O7,4L4

59L,98,273

3L4,25,563

s5,55,436

72,688

629,5L,9L2

23,72,8L5

77,790
78,00,000

279,07,414

26,42,259

717,6t,735

324,27,463

68,38,859

72,688

58s,94,396

20,34,036

7777,28,577

1078,t3,666

75,47,348

130,28,746

32,67,217

380,58,280

18,93,960

1,19,360

L7L7,28,577

6

7

8

9

10

11

t2

13

6

t4
15

7

8

9

18

19

20

2t
22

2t

24

t9
20

2L

23

25

103,00,000

5,70,74L
L9,62,229

96,326

490,59,355

9,63,250

103,00,000

74,97,076

1,96,583

1,07,798
457,36,75s

7,68,774

L7L5,77,787

16

L7

18,57,750

L0L9,60,476

78,57 ,7 
-50

10s9,55,9161038,18,225

90,4L,876

136,92,588

32,60,783

397,67,O8s

18,00,000

2,97,229

89,39,7L4

t,02,162

7 4,39,774

7,O7,634

358,67,3t4
L7,93,701

2L,O4,070

358,02,481
18,38,958

4,76,841

t7t6,77,787

Corporate lnformation 1

Basis ofAccounting 2

Significant Accounting Policies 3

Significant Judgements & Estimates 4

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report annexed of even date

For NAVIN NAYAR & CO.

Chartered Accountonts
Firm Registration No. 317117E

A-... t- - l}
MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

CHAIRMAN

(DIN: 00123386J

/{D"r-,* .,:. ' .

t,L
G-,i^&%*t
ARINDAM ROYCHOWDHURY

Company Secretary
Membership No.A37602

,W
ASHOK VARDHAN BAGREE

Independent Director
(DIN: 00421623)

hA-*--.,^J,
AJAY KWAR AGARVtrALA

Chief Financial Officer

NAVIN NAYAR

PROPRIETOR

Membership No. 053267

Kolkata

The 26th day ofJune, 2020
4Z
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TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED

CIN No. L01132W81 893PLCO0O7 42

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2020

For the year ended
Note No. 31st March, 2020

26 745,O2,649

29,77,037

Total Income 774,79,586

For the year ended
31st March,2019INCOME

Reven ue from Operations

Other lncome

EXPENSES

Goods Purchased from Garden

Cost of Materials Consumed

Changes in lnventories of Finished Goods, Stock-ln-Trade and

Work-in-Progress

Excise Duty on Sales

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Other Expenses
Total Expenses

Profit before Tax
Tax Expense:

Current Tax

Mat Credit

Deferred Tax

lncome Tax for earlier years

Profit/(Loss) for the period
Other Comprehensive lncome

A i. ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

ii. lncome tax relating to these items

Other Comprehensive lncome for the Year (Net of Tax)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Earnings Per Share

Nominal Value of Shares (' 10)

\Veighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding

during the year

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basis of Accounting

Significant Accounting Policies

Significant Judgements & Estimates

27

847,33,209

26,67,479

874,00,688

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

2,55,7L0

7,67,40O

545,68,967

35,44,050

24,O7,405

203,52,354

40,24,289

4,50,527

496,26,681,

3s,48,845

24,56,878

262,40,055

813,89,885 863,47,269

-39,10,200

-2,96,24t

70,53,479

7,67,460

-3,82,898

-36,13,959 12,68,857

35

35A L7,74,642
-2,89,807

15,64,092
-4,06,664

8,24,835 17,57,428

-27,89,L24 24,26,285

!,85,775
-19.45

L,85,775

6.83

1

3

4

The Notes are an i I part ofthe Financial Statements

As per our Report annexed of even date

For NAVIN NAYAR & CO.

Chartered Accountonts

Firm Registration No. 317117E

n*\L5

fi:U^-%eJ^'-tb MANOJ KUMARDAGA

CHAIRMAN

(DIN: 001233861

4tw
ASHOK VARDHAN BAGREE

Independent Director
(DIN:00421623)

\ju*-t
,YARNAV]N NA

PROPRIETOR

Membership No.053267

Kolkata

ARINDAM ROYCHOWDHURY

Company SecretarY

Membership No.A37602

N^Anurrr-\'
0;i"ff;acinwam

Chief Financial OfficerThe 26th day ofjune, 2020

ir.ct+(
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TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED

CIN : L01 1 32WB1893PLC000742

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2O2O

For the
Year ended

31st March 2020

For the
Year ended

31st March 2019

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net ProfiU(Loss) before tax and extraordinary items

Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of lnvestments

(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Assets

Contribution to Gratuity Fund

Finance Cost

lnterest Received

Adjustments for earlier year liabilities

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for :

(lncrease)/Decrease ln Trade Receivable

(lncrease)/Decrease ln lnventories

(lncrease)/Decrease ln Other Finacial Assets

(lncrease)/Decrease ln Other Current Assets

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Trade Payable

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Provisions

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Employee Benefit Obligations

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Other Current Liabilities

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Other Financial Liabilities

Cash generated from oPerations

Direct Tax (paid) / Refund (Net)

Net Cash from operating activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital WIP (net of subsidy)

Proceeds from Sale of lnvestments

Proceeds from Sale of Assets

lnterest Received

Net Cash used in investing activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowi n gs

Proceedsi(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings

Proceeds/Repayment) Long Term borrowing from Bank & Financial lnstitution

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Unsecured Loans

Buy Back of Shares

Dividend Paid

Corporate Dividend Tax Paid

lnterest & Finance Charges

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

-3910200

240L405

26978
L778484

3644050
-28492L7

1053419

2456878

3049L4
7870975

3s48845
-239s918

-145068

1091500 6694045

92LL35
LL83423

-25L7677
-338779

-43257

-167460

73500

177869
1585431

593610
586452

-8407705
-306438

206997
-168385

-12231L6
-185498

74784

1955586 -2t35254
-420003

(A)

(B)

1955686 -2555257

-L552L
0

150000
28492L7

-2176052

0

39725
2395918

2983696 259591

54833
0

1500000
0

-1114550

-91566
-3544050

829599
0

5500000
0

-2322188

-190934
-3548845

4s

(c) -328s533 267632



Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Earmark Balances with Bank

Cash & Bank Balances at the end of the year

Note : 1. Figures shown in bracket shows cash outflow'

2. Previous year's Figures have been regroupedkearranged wherever necessary,

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date'

FoTNAVIN NAYAR&CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 317117E

\-na"i

1553849
298381

-2028034

2224677

L962230
96326

196583

101798

20s855s 298381

fl\ --_)

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

CHAIRMAN

(DlN: 00123386)

NAVIN NAYAR

PROPRIETOR

Membership No.053267
Kolkata

The 26th day ofJune, 2020

L

64.?;-4*- %Ct-*h $?*.tr
ASHOK VARD}TAN BAGREE

lndependent Director
(DlN: 00a21623)

A&(o)-A
AJAY KUN{AR AGARWALA

chiHFinancial Officer

ARINDAM ROYCHOWDHURY

Company Secretary

Membership No.A37602

1o
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TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN No. L01132W81893PLCo00742

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Refer
Note No.

Long Term
As at As at As at

31st March 2019 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Short Term
As at

31st March 2020

6 TRADERECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables

Total Trade Receivables

6.1 & 6.2 76,990 77,790 5,70,741 14,9L,076

76,990 77,790 5,70,74L 74,91,076

Break Up ofSecurity Details
Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Doubtful

76,990 77,790 5,70,74L t4,91,O75

Total 76,990 77,790 5,70,74L 14,97,076

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables

Total Trade Receivables 76,990 77,790 5,70,741 14,97,076

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or

other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member'

LOANS & ADVANCES

Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good

Loans & Advances to Related Parties 
7 J &7,z

Unsecured, considered good 134,00,000 198'00'000

other Loans and Advances
Advance to Other Parties 155,00,000 65'00'000

Advances to others 68,00,000 78,00,000 L73,45,864 156'98'913

Advance to Employees 28,L3,492 27 
'37 '252

Total Loans 58,00,000 78,00,000 490,59,355 457,36,L65

No Loans are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any loan are due from firms or

private companles respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member'

Details of loans and advances to related parties as required by sec. 185 ofthe companies Act, 2013

Balance Outstandinq Maximum Outstanding

6,L

6.2

7,1

1?

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

ll,

i Norben Tea & Exports Limited

Purpose for which the loan was provided

Financial assisitance to enterprise over which KMP

have significant influence

8 OTHERSFINANCIALASSETS

Security & Other Deposits

Unbilled Revenue

lnveslments in Equity lnstruments

(Valued at Cost)

Otherthan Trade

Quoted lnvestment (Fully Paid uP)

22,60,650 (22,60,650) Equlty Shares of Norben Tea &

Exports Ltd. of Rs.10/- each

Other non-current investments

National Defence Certifi cates

lnterest Receivable

134,00,000 198,00,000

r34,00,000 198,00,000

213,00,000 198,00,000

213,00,000 198,00,000

Short TermLong Term
Refer

Note No.
As at

31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

As at
3lst March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

1,27,680
900

2t7,77,834

1,000

1,27,680

900

8.1

2L7,77,834

1,000

9,53,260 7,58,774

,4L4 219,07,4L4 9,63,260 7,68,774

Book value of Quoted Investments 217,77,834 277 ,77 '834

Market value of Quoted lnvestments 119,81,445 119'81-,445

*The investment is long yerm and strategi€ in nature. The management does not foresee any dimunition in value of these investments ; hence no provison

is required to be made

lnclude Rs.1OO0/- marked lien in favour of Government Authorities.

i{ A-;i: : .{.1, ]' !i

8.1
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9 OTHER ASSETS

Advances other than Capital Advances
Advance against supply of Goods & Services

Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances

Prepaid Expenses

Amount Paid Under Protest

Balances with Government & Statutory Authorities
Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances

Security Deposits

Other Receivables

Total Other Assets

10 NONCURRENTTAXASSETS(NET)

Mat Credit Entitlements
Less: Provision for Taxation

11 INVENTORIES
(As valued and certified by the Management)

Finished Goods

Stores and Spares etc.

l1..L Refer note no. 37 for information on inventories piedged as securities by the Company.

12 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS OTHER THAN BEARER PLANTS

Fair Value of Biological Assets Other than Bearer Plants (Unharvested Tea Leaves)

lz,l Unharvested tea leaves on bushes as on 31st March 2020 was 4537 kgs (31.03.2019 - 5839 kgs)

13 CURRENTINVESTMENTS

TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN No. L0 1 l32WBLA93PLCOOO7 42

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 3 1st March, 2020

['ace Value
As at 31st March 2020
Qty Amount

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

2,62,882

3,16,016

L7,93,917

2,13,zLL

L,48,66t

16,72,164

23,72,8L5 20,34,036

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

26,42,259 26,42,259

26,42,259 26,42,2s9

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

t7,90,600

38,64,835

19,58,000

48,80,859

55,55,436 68,38,8s9

72,688 72,688

As at 31st March 2019

Qty Amount

13.1

L+

15 BANK BALANCES (OTHER THAN NoTE: 14)
Unpaid Dividend Account
BOB Dividend A/c

BOB Unclaimed Dividend A/c

HDFC Dividend A/c - 2016

HDFC (Dividend - 2014)

HDFC (lnterim Dividend - 2014)

HDFC (lnterim Dividend - 2015)

HDFC (Final Dividend - 2013)

HDFC (Final Dividend - 2015)

HDFC (lnterirn Dividend - 2015)

HDFC (lnterim Dividend - 2017)

HDFC (Final Dividend - 2017)

HDFC (Final Dividend '2018)
HDFC (Final Dividend - 2019)

INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
oR LOSS

Investments in Unquoted Shares
Equity Shares of Newar Securities Pvt Ltd

Equity Shares of Kanpur Agra Transport P. Ltd

Equity Shares of Satyam ores Pvt Ltd
Equity Shares ofAuckland Trading Pvt Ltd
Equity Shares of Rhea Tradecom Pvt Ltd

TOTAL CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Aggregate Book Value of the Unquoted Investment

cAsH AND CASH EQUVALENTS

Balances With Banks :

ln Current Account - wlth Scheduled Banks

Cash in Hand

10

10

10

10

10

50,000

50 000

15,500

20,000

3,00,000

25,00,000

5,00,000

33,00,000

10,00,000

30,00,000

s0,000

50,000

16,500

20,000

3,00,000

25,00,000

s,00,000

33,00,000

10,00,000

30,00,000

103,00,000 103,00,000

103,00,000 103,00,000

9,98,091

9,64,t38
90,067

L06,sr6
t9,62,229 1,95,583

944

345

10,088

3,932

7,900

4,540

8,280

4,572

5,7rs
20,t05
8,184

10 553

11,058

t7,474
54)

10,088

3,932

7,900

4,540

8,280

4,572

5,7L5

20,105

8,184

10,663

*'

5b

96,326 L,01,798

72,6A8 72,688

As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 20L9

',r,

!



TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March'2O2O

Refer
Note No.

1,85,775

&00,000
20,000

80,00,000

20,00,000

&00,000
20 000

80,00,000

20,00,000

As at 31st March 2020
No. ofShares Amount

As at 31st March 2019

No. ofShares Amount

t6.L

L6 EQUITYSHARECAPITAL

Authorised Share CaPital

Equity share Capital of Rs 10 each

Preference Shares of '100/- each

Opening Number of Shares as on 01 lO4l2Ol9
Add: Change during the year

Closing as on 31/3/2020

16.5

Ordinary Shares of Rs'10/- each fully paid

Manoj Kumar Daga

Shanti Devi 0aga

Jyoti Devi Daga

Visioncraft lndustries (lndia) Private Limited

100,00,000 8,20,000 100,00,000

16.2 Issued Share Capital
Ordinary Shares of'10/- each

16.3 Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Ordinary Shares of '10/- each fully paid-up

16.4 Reconciliationofthenumberofsharesatthebeginningandattheendoftheyear

18,57,750 t,85,775 18.57.750

L8,57,750 t,85,775 18,57,750

t8,57,750 L,85,775 t8,57,750

750 ,750

t,45,775

There has been no change/ movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year,

Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares :

The Company has only one class of Ordinary shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share and each holder of Ordinary shares is entltled to one vote per

share. The Company declares and pays dividends in lndian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval ofthe

shareholders in the Annual General Meetings. The claim of Ordinary Shareholders on earnings and on assets in the event of liquidation, follows all others, in

proportion to their shareholding.

16.6 Shareholding Pattern with respect of Holding or Ultimate Holding Company

The Company does not have any Holding Company or Ultimate Holding Company'

16.7 Details ofEquity Shareholders holding more than 5olo shares in the
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

No. ofShares o/o Holdins No. of Shares o/o Holdins

43,383

42,732

42,t55
20,400

23.3s%

23.00%

22.a0%

70.98%

43,383

42,732

42,355

20,400

23.35%

23.00%

22.80%

t0.98%

No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet

date.

16.g The Company has not allotted any equity shares against consideration other than cash nor has allotted any shares as fully paid up by way of bonus shares'

Thecompanyboughback60,000equityshares@5oopershareduringtheyearended3l.03.20lS

16.9 No securities convertible into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year

16.10 No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year'

L
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OTHER EQUITY

General Reserve

Retained Earnings

Other Reserves

General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Transferred from Retained Earnings

Less: Other Adjustments

Balance at the end of the year

Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Reclassification of financial instruments from

OCI to Retained Earnings

Less: Appropriation
Final Dividend

Corporate Dividend Tax on Final Dividend

Balance at the end of the year

TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN No. L01132WBLA93PLCOOO7 42

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March,zozo

Refer

Note No.

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

t7

t7.t

17.2

17.3 OtherReserves
Capital Reserves

Balance at the end of the year

43906,761

574,93,7L5

5,60,000

438,06,76L

614,89,155

6,60,000

tor9,60,476 1059,55,916

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

438,06,761 438,06,761

438,06,761 438,06,76t

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

514,89,155

(27,89,124l.

6L5,75,992

24,26,285

587,00,031 640,02,277

11,14,550

91,666

23,22,1a8

t,90,934

Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add/(Less): created on buyback of shares

Balance at the end of the year

Securities Premium Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add/(Less): Adjusted with premium on buyback

Balance at the end of the year

Total other Reserve

Total Reserve & Surplus

18 BORROWINGS

18.1 TermLoans
From Banks:

Non-Current Portion

L2,06,3L6 25,13,t22

(12,06,3151 (25,13,7221

574,93,715 6t4,89,L55

60,000 50,000

6,00,000 6,00,000

5,00,000 6,00,000

6,60,000 5,60,000

6,60,000 5,60,000

1079,60,476 1059,55,916

Current Maturities
Refer

Note No.
As at

31st March 2020
As at

31st March 2019
As at

31st March 2020
As at

31st March 2019

From Others:
Rupee Loans

Machinery under Tea Board Hire Purchase Scheme

(Secured by Hypothecation of the related assets

(The entire Principal amount is overdue)
From Body Corporates

Total
Amount disclosed under the head "Other Financial Liability"

Break Up ofSecurity Details
Secured

Unsecured

L9,39,714

70,00,000

79,39,774

55,00,000

89,?9,7L4

L9,39,7t4

74,39,7L4

L9,39,714

774

Total

56
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Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March,2020

Lonq-term Short-term
L9 TRADEPAYABLES

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Dues to Creditors other than Micro & Small

Enterprises

For Goods

For Services & Others

19.1

.95.70L 18,38,958

L7,95,70L 18,38,9s8

tg.L Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, to the extent ascertained, and as per notification number

GSR 679 (E) dated 4th September, 2015. The Company has compiled this information based on intimation received from the suppliers oftheir status as Micro

or Small Enterprises and/or its registration with appropriate authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act").

Sl. No, Particulars
As at

3l't March 2020

As at

31't March 2019

1 Principal Amount Due and remaining unpaid

2 lnterest due on (1) above and unpaid interest

3 lnterest paid on all delayed payments under MSMED Act

4 Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year

5 lnterest due and payable for the period of delay other than (3) above

6 lnterest Accrued and remaining unpaid

7 Amount offurther lnterest remaining due and payable in succeeding years

x

Long-term Short-term

Refer
Note No.

Refer
Note No,

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

As at
31st March 2020

As at As at
31st March 201.9 31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

20 OTHERFINANCIALLIABILITIES

Unpaid and unclaimed dividends

Employees related Liabilities

Amount payable for Capital Goods

Other Payables

z0,t 91037

7,125

I,02,162

zO.L There are no amounts due for payment to the lnvestor Education and Protection Fund at the year end.

2I PROVISIONS Long-term

1,00,509

7,r25

L9,12,137

1,91,933

4,05,8ss

9,985

t,o7,634 7L,U,070 4,16,84t

Short-term
As at

31st March 2020
As at

31st March 2019
As at

31st March 2020
As at

31st March 2019

Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for Current Tax

Contingent Liability (acquired from Business

Combinations, if any)

As per AS 15 - Provision for gratuity

136,92,588 L30,28,746 18,00,000 L7,26,500

7,67,450

L36,92,588 t30,28,746 1&00,000 18,93,950

('l-r'.. :-,"
F

5cl



22 DEFERREDTAXLIABILITTES(NET)

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Arising on account of:
Property, Plant & Equipment

Financial Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets
Arising on account of:
Section 438 of lncome-tax Act

Provision for doubtful debts
Brought Forward Unabsorbed Losses

Others

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

26 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products

Tea (Net of Excise)

TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN No. L01132W81893PLCo00742

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March,2O2O

Long-term

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

51,66,550 6L,52,194

51,65,550 61-,52,L94

29,Os,777 28,44,977

2,9,o5,777 28,84,977

32,60,7A3 32,67,2t7

short-term
Refer

Note No.
As at

31st March 2020
As at

31st March 201.9

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

23 OTHER LIABILITIES

Advances Received from Customers

Statutory Dues

Others

2,97,229 1,19,360

24 SHORTTERMBORROWINGS As at

31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

Loans Repayable on Demand
Working Capital Loan from Banks 3s4,67,?14 358,O2,48t

Other Loans

From Other Body Corporates
358,67,3t4 358,02,481

24,1 Theaboveamountincludes
Secured Borrowings

unsecured Borrowings

358,67,314 358,02,48r

358,67,3L4 358,02,48L

24.2 Terms and conditions ofShort Term Borrowings
(Secured by way of hypothecation of Company's entire stock of tea crops, green leaves,stores,spares,book debts,other current assets, unencumbered

movable machinery & other fixed assets both present and future pertaining to Company's garden.Equitable mortgage over Tea Estate measuring about

235.57 hectares and personal guarantee of the Promoter Director is Rs.390.00 lakhs)

25 CURRENTTAXLTABTTTTTES(NET)

Provision for Taxation

Less: Taxes paid

Closing balance

For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year
ended

31st March 2019

745,O2,649 847,33,209

745,02,649 u7,33,209

'i. --l .
Other Operating Revenues

6a

745,02,649 847,33,209

2,97,229 1,19,350
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27 OTHERINCOME

lnterest lncome

On Loans

Rent

Excess Liabiities Written Back

other Miscellaneous lncome

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Value of Consumption of Raw Materials represents only Green Leaf purchased from third parties.

29 ONCREASE)/ DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF

FINISHED GOODS,WORK.IN-PROGRESS AND

TRADED GOODS

Finished Goods

Opening lnventories
Closing lnventories

Total changes in inventories ofwork-in'
progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

staff welfare Expenses

Gratuity Provided

Less: Amount Capitalised

31 FINANCE COST

Interest Expenses

To Banks on Term Loans

" Banks On Working Capital Loans

" Others

Other Borrowing Costs

Other Financial Charges

Less: AmountCapitalised

32 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

On Tangible Assets

33

OTHER EXPENSES

For the year
ended3lst March

2020

For the year
ended3lst March

2019

23,95,918

84,000

1,45,068

43,820 42,493
29,77,037 26,67 ,479

2.8,49,217

84,000

2A

19,58,000

17,90,500

24,08,52t
19,58,000

1,67,400 4.50.527

361,s8,553

40,2t,o04
t26,L0,a22

346,L2,635

33,80,610

97,62,461

!7. 18,

545,68,967 496,76,681

545,68,967 496,26,68t

27,99,809

6,9s,703

32,60,779

1,84,638

\4A,538 t,o4,028

36,44,050 35.48.845

24,0,-,405 24,56,878

u,0t,405 u55N8

For the year
ended3lst March

2020

For the year

ended3lst March
z0L9

manure manufcature & cultivation

Consumed

Change in fair valuation of biological assets

Power & Fuel

Repairs to Buildings

Repairs to Machinery

Repairs to Other Assets

Cess - On green leaf

Freight, Shipping, Delivery Charges & Selling

Expenses

Commission & Brokerages

Auditors' Remuneration

Rent, Rates & Taxes

lnsurance

Loss on Sale of lnvestments

Loss on Sale ofAsset

Donation

Directors' Fees & Commission

Legal and Professional Charges

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses

Other Expenses

37,89,513

97,14,570
5,30,026

8,52,992
L7,964

13,52,256

12,t3,619

1,50,000

2,00 039

38,652

70,88,L75

97,39,573

r,29,021

6,68,952

7,I7,998

14,88,935

t4,93,902

1,50,000

2,65,L68

86,059

3,04,9t4

15,000

89,000

2,46,399

2,65,029

34,90,930

26,978

15,000

r,08,000

2,09,838

5,32,s58
22,OO,339

Pt:li!11 ":
203,52,354 262,40,055

Less: AmountCapltalised

6t

203,52,354 262,40,055

36,44,050 35,48,845



33.1
Auditors' Remuneration
Statutory Auditors

Audit Fees

Tax Audit Fees

Others

34 TAXEXPENSE

Current Tax

Mat Credit

Deferred Tax

lncome Tax for earlier years

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that will be not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans

Less: Tax expense on the above

Total

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
35.2 Others

Less: Tax expense on the above

TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN No. 101132W81893PLCo00742

i\" iii

r,50,000 1,50,000

For the year
For the year ended ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

12,96,24L1

L,67,460

(3,82,898)

12,96,2471 l'2,Ls,438].

1,.,L4,642
(2,89,8071

15,64,092

1t4,06,6641

8,24,835 7t,57,428

8,24,835 77,57,428

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March,2020

70,0(x)

30,000

50,000

70,000

30,000

50,000

35
35.1
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36.2

37
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36 ContingentLiabilitiesandCondngentAssets:

36.1 Claims/Disputes/Demands not acknowledged as debts

Sl. No.
NAME OF

STATUTE

NATURE OF

DUES
PIRIOD FORUM

As at
31st March

2020

As at
31st March

20L9
a

b

c

Department of
lncome Tax

Department of
lncome Tax

Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2Ot2-1.3 c.r.T (APPEALS) - 2

c.r.T (APPEALS) - 2

c.r.T (APPEALS) - 2

lncome Tax 2013-14

lncomeTax ZOl4-Ls

1,09,250

24,7L,730

57,820

7,09,250

24,77,730

57,820

ln respect of the matters in note no. 36.1, future cash outflows are determinable only on receipt of .iudgements/decisions pending at various forums/ authorities.

Furthermore, there is no possibilities of any reimbursements to be made to the company from any third party.

Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Particulars Refer Note No,

As at
31st March

2020

As at
31st March

20L9
Current
Financial assets

First charge
Trade Receivables

Floating charge
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Non-financial assets

First charge
I nventories

Total current assets pledged as security

Non-current

First charge
Freehold land

Freehold buildings

Furniture, fittings and equipment acquired under flnance lease

Total non-currents assets pledged as security

Total assets pledged as security

6,47,737 1s,68,856

6,47,731 1s,68,866

56,5s,435 68,38,859

56,55,436 68,38,859

63,03,767 84,07,725

2,3t,60s
2t5,23,a53
473,0L,387

2,37,60s

223,t4,342
490,73,7s4

690,56,839 7L6,19,701

753,60,005 800,27,426

ln accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities, the requisite disclosure is as follows:

Particulars Amount

Gross Amount Required to be spent by the company during the year

Related Party transactions as per lnd AS 24 in relation to CSR Expenditure

Provision made in relation to CSR expenditure

N.A

N.A

N.A

38.2 Amount spent during the year on

Sl. No. Particulars ln Cash
Yet to be

paid in cash
Total

Construction/ Acquisition of aLry asset

On purpose other above

39 Certain trade receivables , loans & advances and creditors are subject to confirmation. ln the opinion of the management, the value of trade receivables and loans &

advances on realisation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less than the value at which these are stated in the balance sheet.

38

38.1

i'1....1/

,ll.:l
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40 Related Party Disclosures

40.1 Other related parties with whom ransactions have taken place during the year and previous year are:

Nature Name of the Company

Name of the Company in which Directors/ Key
Managerial Personnel and their relatives have

significant influence

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

Nature Name Designation

Key Management Personnels

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA DIRECTOR

AHSOK VARDHAN BAGREE DIRECTOR

RAVINDRA KUMAR MURARKA DIRECTOR

SUMANA RAYCHAUDHURI DIRECTOR

ARINDAM ROYCHOWDHURY COMPANY SECRETARY

Nature Name

INDIVIDUALS HAVING SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE

OVER REPORTING ENTITY

JYOTI DEVI DAGA

SHANTI DEVI DAGA

40.2 TransactionsduringtheYear

Particulars

20L9-20 20ta-Lg

KMP Relatives of KMP
Companies in

which KMP are
interested

KMP
Relatives of

KMP

Companies in
which KMP

are interested

Agricultural Purchases

Directors Sitting Fees

Dividend Paid

1,08,000.00

e61,648.00 5,77,602.00

1s,12,000.00

89,000.00

5,30,413.00 Lt,7l,775.OO

1s,12,000.00

40,3 Balance Outstanding as at the balance sheet date

Particulars

As at
31st March

2020

As at
31st March

2019

I Purchases NIL NIL

Directors Sitting Fees NIL NIL

40.4 Terms and Conditions of transactiosn with Related Parties

No specific terms & conditions.

lL No undisputed statutory dues remained outstanding as on 31.03.2020 for the period more than six months from the date from which they became payable. Provision for

expenses relating to municipal taxes payable to local municiapl office since 01-04-2013 to 31-03-2020 has not been made as the amount is unidentifiable.

42 During the Financial year 2015-16 ITAT passed an order vide tTA No . LL22/KOLI2O72 dated 24-11-2015 in favour of the company, whereby the Hon'ble Authority allowed Rs

58,40,526/- as total unabsorbed depreciation loss to be carried forward which comprises:

Serial No. Nature Of Loss Assessement Year Amount (Rsl

1 Unabsorbed Depreciation Loss 1986-87 8,07,133.00

2 Unabsorbed Depreciation Loss 1987-88 12,02,080.00

3 Unabsorbed Depreciation Loss 1988-89 20,08,07s.00

4 Unabsorbed Depreciation Loss 1998-99 18,23,238.00

6/l
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43 Tax Expenses every year are reckoned after taking into account deduction u/s 8Ol E of the I ncome Tax Act, 1952, due to substantial expansion in the value of plant &

machinery In the Financial Year -2011-2012. ln view of the same, the company has to provide Central lncome Tax on Book profits u/s 115J8 and Agriculture lncome Tax as per

Assam Agriculture lncome Tax Act. However, in view of the loss in the current year no provision for taxation has been made.

44 Due to the unforeseen situation of the ongoing COVID 19 pandemic, the company recorded no sales in the last few days of the relevant Financial Year. The company made an

company has recorded a sharp decline in it's profiatbility and has resulted in a loss for the company partially due to the combined effect of the said scenarios.

46 The previous year figures have been rearranged/regrouped to confirm with the presentation requirements under lnd AS.

N.-"
The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report annexed of even date
For NAVIN NAYAR & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 317117E A'JJ^"%eI-,% W
ASHOK VARDHAN BAGREE

Independent Director
(DlN:0Q421623)

ffi^='-v"r\
n\Nxuruen acARwALA

Chief Financial Officer

MANOI KUMAR DAGA

CHAIRMAN

[DIN: 00123386)

\fu ARINDAM ROYCHOWDHURY

Company Secretary
Membership No.A37602NAVIN NAYAR
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The 26th day ofJune, 2020
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